# **FSA Cooperative Purchasing Program**



**Contract: FSA19-VEH17.0** 

**Heavy Trucks and Equipment** 

Contract: FSA19-VEL27.0

**Pursuit, Administrative and Other Vehicles** 

**Contract Terms and Conditions** 

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

## Contents

1.0 GENE	RAL CONDITIONS	5
1.01	BID CORRESPONDENCE	5
1.02	PURPOSE	6
1.03	TERM OF CONTRACT	6
1.04	ESTIMATED QUANTITIES	6
1.05	SHERIFF AS COUNTY CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER	6
1.06	FUNDING	6
1.07	CURRENCY	7
1.08	GENERAL DEFINITIONS	7
1.09	ELIGIBLE PURCHASERS OF CONTRACT	8
1.10	LEGAL REQUIREMENTS	9
1.11	PATENTS & ROYALTIES	9
1.12	FEDERAL AND STATE STANDARDS	9
1.13	UNDERWRITERS' LABORATORIES	9
1.14	AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT	10
1.15	REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION	10
1.16	MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE)	10
1.17	ANTI-DISCRIMINATION	10
1.18	BEST COMMERCIAL PRACTICES	10
1.19	PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES (PEC)	10
1.20	TAX EXEMPTION	11
1.21	TAXES	
1.22	ORDER OF PRECEDENCE IN THE EVENT OF CONFLICT	11
1.23	COMMUNICATIONS	11
1.24	CLARIFICATION AND ADDENDA	11
1.25	SIGNED BID CONSIDERED AN OFFER	12
1.26	ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT	12
1.27	TERMINATION OF PRODUCT LINE	12
1.28	METHOD OF AWARD	13

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

1.2	29	DEMONSTRATION OF COMPETENCY	13
1.3	30	VENDOR ABILITY TO PERFORM	13
1.3	31	FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY	14
1.3	32	QUALITY AND SAFETY	14
1.3	33	NONCONFORMANCE	14
1.3	34	GRATUITIES	15
1.3	35	TIE BIDS	15
1.3	36	RIGHT TO AUDIT	15
1.3	37	LIABILITY, INSURANCE, LICENSES AND PERMITS	16
1.3	38	BID BONDS, PERFORMANCE BONDS, CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE	16
1.3	39	ELIMINATION FROM CONSIDERATION	16
1.4	10	COLLUSION	16
1.4	11	DEFAULT	17
1.4	12	PROTESTS AND ARBITRATION	17
1.4	13	NONPERFORMANCE	18
1.4	14	SEVERABILITY	19
1.4	15	TERMINATION FOR CAUSE	20
1.4	16	TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE	20
1.4	17	CONTRACT ADVERTISMENT AND USE OF FSA LOGO	20
2.0	BIDDE	R INSTRUCTIONS	21
2.0	01	BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS	21
2.0	)2	LICENSING/FACILITIES	21
2.0	)3	INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION	22
2.0	)4	SPECIFICATIONS	24
2.0	)5	FIXED PRICES	24
2.0	06	SEALED BIDS	24
2.0	07	EXCEPTIONS, OMISSION AND ERRORS	24
2.0	08	MISTAKES	25
2.0	)9	EQUIVALENTS	25
2.1	10	MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING	25
2.1	11	QUALIFICATION	26

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

2.12	PRICES QUOTED	26
2.13	OPTION PRICING	26
2.14	EMERGENCY LIGHTS AND SIRENS	28
2.15	SUBMITTAL OF BID	29
2.16	ZONE BIDDING	30
2.17	EXECUTION OF BID	30
2.18	MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWALS OF BIDS	31
2.19	LATE BIDS	31
2.20	BID OPENING	31
2.21	DETERMINATION OF RESPONSIVENESS	31
2.22	RESPONSIBLE BIDDER CRITERIA	31
2.23	BASIS FOR AWARD	32
2.24	FIRM BID	32
2.25	BID TABULATIONS	32
2.26	MINOR IRREGULARITIES/RIGHT TO REJECT	33
2.27	CONE OF SILENCE	33
3.0 CONT	RACT CONDITIONS	34
3.01	GENERAL REQUIREMENTS	34
3.02	STATEMENT OF AUTHORITY	34
3.03	VENDOR CONTACT INFORMATION	34
3.04	OPTION TO RENEW & PRICE ADJUSTMENT	34
3.05	ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS	35
3.06	EQUITABLE ADJUSTMENT	35
3.07	DISCOUNTS	35
3.08	CONDITIONS	35
3.09	PRODUCTION CUTOFF	36
3.10	FACILITIES	36
3.11	SUBSTITUTIONS	36
3.12	POLICE RATED VEHICLES & MOTORCYCLES	36
3.13	SPECIAL SERVICE VEHICLES	37
3.14	CAB AND CHASSIS PURCHASES	37

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

3.15	FACTORY INSTALLED	37
3.16	VENDOR INSTALLED	38
3.17	NON-SCHEDULED OPTIONS	38
3.18	FORCE MAJEURE	38
3.19	DELIVERY TIME	38
3.20	ORDER	39
3.21	VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT DELIVERY	40
3.22	INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE	41
3.23	REGISTRATION, TAG AND TITLE	42
3.24	INVOICING AND PAYMENTS	42
3.25	WARRANTY REPAIRS AND SERVICE	42
3.26	INADEQUATE SERVICE	42
3.27	REPORTING: PURCHASE ORDERS & QUARTERLY REPORTS	43
3.28	ADMINISTRATIVE FEE	44
3.29	LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	44
Appendi	ix A	46
Appendi	ix B	47
Appendi	ix C	48
	ix D	
Appendi	ix E	50

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

## 1.0 GENERAL CONDITIONS

## 1.01 BID CORRESPONDENCE

All correspondence regarding this bid should be directed to the Florida Sheriffs Association "FSA", using the information shown above. Please be sure to reference the bid number and your contact information.

The contacts for this bid are:

Annette Grissom, FSA Cooperative Purchasing Program Coordinator II

E-mail: agrissom@flsheriffs.org Phone: 850-877-2165 ext. 5811

Fax: 850-878-5115

Craig Chown, FSA Cooperative Purchasing Program Manager

E-mail: cchown@flsheriffs.org Phone: 850-877-2165 ext. 5833

Fax: 850-878-5115

Communication for this Invitation to Bid should be identified by contract number and title and directed to:

Florida Sheriffs Association Attn: Cooperative Purchasing Program Coordinator 2617 Mahan Drive Tallahassee, FL 32308

E-mail: CPP@flsheriffs.org

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

## 1.02 PURPOSE

The Florida Sheriffs Association invites interested Bidders, including Motor Vehicle Manufacturers and Dealers/Certified Representatives to submit responses in accordance with these solicitation documents. The FSA Cooperative Purchasing Program will conduct the solicitation process and administer the resulting contract. The purpose of this bid is to establish a twelve (12) month contract with manufacturers and manufacturer's authorized vendors for the purchase of vehicles and equipment on a "no trade-in basis".

#### 1.03 TERM OF CONTRACT

This contract shall remain in effect for one (1) year from date of contract execution by the FSA, and may be renewed by mutual agreement, at the sole option and discretion of the FSA, pursuant to the terms of Section 3.04.

The term of contract begins October 1, 2019 and ends September 30, 2020.

Contract extensions will only be executed when the FSA determines, based on then-existing conditions, that it is in the best interest of the FSA and the purchasers to do so.

## 1.04 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

In FY 2017-18, eligible users purchased approximately 8,330 vehicles and equipment from this contract. These estimated figures are given as a guideline for bidders preparing bids.

Quantities provided do not guarantee or imply future contract sales. Neither the FSA nor any eligible user is obligated to place any order for a given amount subsequent to the award of this bid solicitation.

## 1.05 SHERIFF AS COUNTY CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER

The Offices of the Sheriff in the State of Florida are constitutional offices of the State of Florida. Each has the authority either individually or collectively to execute contracts for all goods and services for the proper conduct of that office. Section 30.53, Florida Statutes, exempts the sheriffs' offices from the provisions of the Florida Statute that would otherwise require sealed and competitive bidding procedures.

It is our practice to give consideration to the prices offered, but the Office of the Sheriff is not required by law to accept the lowest priced proposal and may reject any or all of the proposals without recourse. Bidders are solely responsible for their own bid preparation costs and nothing in this solicitation in any way obligates the participating sheriffs' offices for any payment for any activity or costs incurred by any bidder in responding to this solicitation.

## 1.06 FUNDING

In the case of certain purchasers, including state agencies, funds expended for the purposes of the contract must be appropriated by the Florida Legislature, the individual participating agency or the agency's appropriating authority for each fiscal year included within the contract period. For such agencies, their

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

performances and obligations to pay for products or services under any resulting contract, or purchase order, are contingent upon such an annual appropriation by the Legislature, individual agency or by the appropriating authority. Therefore, any contract or purchase order with such an agency shall automatically terminate without penalty or termination costs in the event of non-appropriation.

## 1.07 CURRENCY

All transaction amounts, bids, quotes, provisions, payments or any part of this contract relating to currency are to be made in United States Dollar.

## 1.08 GENERAL DEFINITIONS

The terms used in this contract are defined as the following:

- a. Bidder: A proposer or enterprise that submits a formal offer to the FSA Cooperative Purchasing Program Administrator in accordance with the Contract Terms and Conditions.
- b. Bid System: The online forum used for the submission of electronic bids and review of bid results for the specifications connected to this Invitation to Bid. VendorLink is the software used for this bid.
- c. Dealer: A manufacture's certified representative authorized by the manufacturer to market, sell, provide, and service the vehicles/equipment for the FSA Cooperative Purchasing Program. Dealers may be vendor-owned and controlled, in whole or in part, or independently owned and controlled.
- d. Florida Sheriffs Association Cooperative Purchasing Program (FSA): The entity that administeres the Invitation to bid and contract administration functions for this contract.
- e. End User: A term used to distinguish the person who ultimately uses or is intended to use a product or for whom a product is designed for use.
- f. Factory: Refers to the manufacturer produced products.
- g. Fleet Advisory Committee (FAC): An employee of a sheriff's office or other local governmental agency, or any other person who FSA identifies as subject matter expert who assists with the development of bid specifications and evaluation of bid responses. The Fleet Advisory Committee makes recommendations to the FSA and is not responsible for final awards.
- h. Invitation to Bid: A competitive solicitation and award process established through the issuance of an invitation to vendors, dealers and manufacturers to submit a price offer on a specific product to be provided. This term shall include the bid specifications available to bidders on the bid system and references to solicitation documents. The term shall not include request for proposals, request for quotes, request for letters of interest, or the solicitation of purchase orders based on oral or written quotations.
- i. Manufacturer: The original producer or provider of vehicles or equipment offered on this contract.

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

- j. Manufacturer's Suggested Retail Price (MSRP): Manufacturer's Suggested Retail Price (MSRP) represents the Manufacturer's recommended retail selling price, list price, published list price, or other usual and customary price that would be paid by the purchaser. The following are acceptable sources of current MSRPs and MSRP Lists for use in submission of the bid solicitation and the resulting contract:
  - Manufacturer's Computer Printouts: Ford "Dora"; General Motors "GM Autobook"; or approved equivalent
  - 2. Chrome Systems, Inc.'s PC Carbook (PC Carbook Plus and PC Carbook Fleet Edition)
  - 3. Manufacturer's Annual U.S. Price Book
  - 4. Manufacturer's official website
- k. Non-Scheduled Options: Any optional new or unused component, feature or configuration that is not included or listed in the base vehicle specifications or options.
- Production Cutoff: A date used by manufacturers to notify dealers that the factory has reached maximum capacity for orders or are discontinuing the production of a vehicle or equipment. Vehicle manufacturers use this term when referring to any given model year for production.
- m. Published List Price: A standard "quantity of one" price currently available to government and educational purchasers, excluding cooperative or volume discounts.
- n. Purchaser: A Purchaser is an entity that seeks to obtain vehicles or equipment off this contract by meeting the eligible user criteria or with vendor approval.
- o. Purchase Order: A request for order from a purchaser to an awarded vendor for an item that has been awarded on this Contract. Purchaser orders placed using this contract formalize the terms and conditions of this contract under which a vendor furnishes vehicles or equipment to a purchaser.
- p. Third Party Supplier: Businesses external to a bidder or vendor that provide products and services which contribute to the overall finished vehicle or equipment. Third Party Suppliers are contractors under the direction and responsibility of the bidder or vendor.
- q. Vendor: The bidder that has been awarded and agrees to provide vehicles or equipment that meet the requirements and base specifications. The vendor must agree to the contract terms and conditions of the contract before being awarded to the contract.
- r. Vendor Installed: A product or service provided by the vendor or other third party; not the factory.

## 1.09 ELIGIBLE PURCHASERS OF CONTRACT

Awarded bids, or contract prices, will be extended and guaranteed to the Florida Sheriffs Association, any unit of local government, political subdivision or agency of the State of Florida. This includes, but is not limited to counties, municipalities, sheriffs' offices, clerks, property appraisers, tax collectors, supervisors of elections, school boards or districts, water management districts, police and fire departments, emergency response units, state universities and colleges, or other state, local or regional government entities within the State of Florida.

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

All purchasers are bound by state law, local ordinances, rules and regulations for purchases made under this contract. Participating agencies cannot guarantee any order other than those ordered by the individual agency.

In addition, bids can be extended and guaranteed to other entities approved by manufacturers to participate in this contract, which can include out of state sales. Vendors that wish to extend contract pricing to entities other than those defined here are governed by their manufacturer's agreement, and must agree to the terms and conditions of this contract.

## 1.10 LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

Federal, State, county laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that in any manner affect the items covered herein apply. Lack of knowledge by the bidder of applicable legal requirements will in no way be a cause for relief from responsibility.

## 1.11 PATENTS & ROYALTIES

The bidder, without exception, shall indemnify and hold harmless the FSA and its employees from liability of any nature or kind, including costs and expenses for, or on account of, any copyrighted, patented, or unpatented invention, process, or article manufactured or used in the performance of the contract, including its use by the FSA or a purchaser.

If the bidder uses any design, device or materials covered by letters, patent, or copyright, it is mutually understood and agreed, without exception, that the bid prices shall include all royalties or costs in any way arising, directly or indirectly, from the use of such design, device, or materials in any way involved in the work.

#### 1.12 FEDERAL AND STATE STANDARDS

It is the intent of FSA that all specifications herein are in full and complete compliance with all federal and State of Florida laws, requirements, and regulations applicable to the type and class of commodities and contractual services being provided.

In addition, any applicable federal or State legal or regulatory requirements that become effective during the term of the Contract, regarding the commodities and contractual services' specifications, safety, and environmental requirements shall immediately become a part of the Contract. The vendor shall meet or exceed any such requirements of the laws and regulations. If an apparent conflict exists, the vendor shall contact the FSA immediately.

The bidder shall obtain and pay for all licenses, permits and inspection fees for this bid submission and contract.

#### 1.13 UNDERWRITERS' LABORATORIES

Unless otherwise stipulated in the bid, all manufactured items and fabricated assemblies shall be Underwriters' Laboratories, or U.L., listed or re-examination listing where such has been established by U.L. for the item(s) offered and furnished.

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

## 1.14 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT

To request this material in accessible format, sign language interpreters, information on access for persons with disabilities, or any accommodation to review any document or participate in any FSA sponsored proceeding, please contact FSA Human Resources at (850) 877-2165 five days in advance to initiate your request. TTY users may also call the Florida Relay Service at 711.

## 1.15 REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION

In accordance with the Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring an accommodation at the Bid opening because of a disability must contact the FSA Human Resources at (850) 877-2165.

## 1.16 MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE)

The Florida Sheriffs Association policy is that Minority Business Enterprises (MBE) shall have the opportunity to participate in this invitation to bid. Such process would be for supplying goods and services to FSA and Purchasers.

## 1.17 ANTI-DISCRIMINATION

The bidder certifies that he/she is in compliance as applicable by federal or state law with the non-discrimination clause contained in Section 202, Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Order 11375, relative to equal employment opportunity for all persons without regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin.

#### 1.18 BEST COMMERCIAL PRACTICES

The apparent silence of this specification and any supplemental specifications as to any details or the omission from it of a detailed description concerning any point shall be regarded as meaning that only the best commercial practices, size, and design are to be used.

All workmanship is to be first quality. All interpretations of this specification shall be upon the basis of this statement.

## 1.19 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES (PEC)

In accordance with the Public Entity Crimes Act, Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list maintained by the State of Florida Department of Management Services following a conviction for public entity crimes may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a Vendor, supplier, Sub-Vendor, or consultant under a contract with a public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

#### 1.20 TAX EXEMPTION

All State and Federal tax exemptions applicable to the units of local government of the State of Florida will apply, and appropriate certifications furnished. Purchasers shall comply with all federal, state and local tax requirements.

The Florida Sheriffs Association is a 501(c)3 organization and is exempt from all Federal Excise and State Taxes. State Sales Tax and Use Certificate Number is 85-8012646919C-3.

#### **1.21 TAXES**

Customers making a purchase pursuant to the awarded bid are generally exempt from Federal Excise and State Sales Tax. It is the responsibility of the vendor to verify that the purchaser is exempt by obtaining the purchaser's Federal Excise and State Taxes and Use Certificate Number.

#### 1.22 ORDER OF PRECEDENCE IN THE EVENT OF CONFLICT

In the event of conflict, the conflict may be resolved in the following order of priority (highest to lowest):

- 1. Addenda to Contract Terms and Conditions, if issued
- 2. Contract Conditions
- 3. Addenda to Bid Specifications, if issued
- 4. Bid Specifications
- 5. Bidder Instructions
- 6. General Conditions

#### 1.23 COMMUNICATIONS

Communications between a proposer, bidder, lobbyist or consultant and FSA are limited to matters of process or procedure and shall be made in writing to the contact persons identified in Section 1.01 of this procurement.

Bidders should not rely on representations, statements, or explanations other than those made in this Bid or in any written addendum to this Bid, and no oral representations, statements, or explanations shall be deemed to bind the FSA or eligible users.

#### 1.24 CLARIFICATION AND ADDENDA

Any questions or clarifications concerning the Invitation to Bid shall be submitted to FSA by e-mail to <a href="CPP@flsheriffs.org">CPP@flsheriffs.org</a> with the bid title and number referenced on all correspondence. Final questions must be received by the date for Request for Clarification stated on the Bid Calendar. Questions and answers will be posted to the FSA Cooperative Purchasing Program website on the date indicated on the Bid Calendar.

Interpretation of the specifications or any solicitation documents will <u>not</u> be made to the bidder verbally, and if any verbal clarifications are provided they are without legal effect.

Questions received after the cone of silence date listed on the bid calendar will not be addressed. The FSA reserves the right to address technical questions.

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

The FSA shall issue a Formal Addendum if substantial changes which impact the submission of bids are required. Any such addenda shall be binding on the bidder and shall become a part of the solicitation document. In the event of conflict with the original specifications, addenda shall govern to the extent specified. Subsequent Addenda shall govern over prior Addenda only to the extent specified.

FSA will make every attempt to e-mail updates to registered bidders. However, posting to the FSA website or the bid system constitutes proper notice of addenda.

The bidder shall be required to acknowledge receipt of the Formal Addendum by signing in the space provided. Failure to acknowledge Addendum shall deem the bid non-responsive; provided, however, that pursuant to section 2.26, the FSA may waive this requirement in its best interest. The FSA will not be responsible for any explanation or interpretation made verbally or in writing except those made through the posting of a Formal Addendum.

The bid submission constitutes acknowledgment of addenda to the specifications. Bids that fail to account for the specification addenda shall be determined to be nonresponsive; however, that pursuant to section 2.26, the FSA may waive this requirement in its best interest.

After the start of the contract term, FSA will notify all vendors of any addenda and will require acknowledgement of the new terms and conditions. If the vendor does not agree to the new terms and conditions, the vendor's award can be removed or replaced by another vendor or qualified responsive bidder.

## 1.25 SIGNED BID CONSIDERED AN OFFER

The signed Bid shall be considered an offer on the part of the bidder, which offer shall be deemed accepted upon approval by the FSA and in case of default on the part of successful bidder, after such acceptance, the FSA may procure the items or services from other sources. The bid submission must be signed by an authorized representative.

An electronic signature may be used and shall have the same force and effect as a written signature.

## 1.26 ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT

No right or interest in this Contract may be assigned, transferred, conveyed, sublet or otherwise disposed of, without prior written consent of the FSA.

If the original vendor sells or transfers all assets or the entire portion of the assets used to perform this Contract, a successor-in-interest must perform all obligations under this Contract. FSA reserves the right to reject the acquiring entity as vendor. A change of name agreement will not change the contractual obligations of the vendor.

## 1.27 TERMINATION OF PRODUCT LINE

If a vendor terminates a product line (manufacturer or brand), the vendor is required to notify the FSA within 10 business days of the decision not to retain the product line.

In the event a manufacturer reassigns the product line to an alternate vendor, the manufacturer and the vendor are required to immediately notify the FSA in writing of the change within 10 business days

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

confirming the reassignment. If the vendor is not already an approved FSA vendor, the vendor is required to apply to the FSA to become an approved vendor <u>prior to</u> conducting any qualified sales. The vendor and the manufacturer are required to honor the contract pricing and all of the applicable terms and conditions throughout the remaining term of the contract.

## 1.28 METHOD OF AWARD

The award is made to responsive and responsible bidders. FSA uses its discretion in determining if bids meet the requirements of this solicitation.

The FSA reserves the right to make multiple awards within a specification, if deemed in the best interest of the FSA and the purchasers.

Awards will be posted on the FSA website according to the date posted in the bid calendar.

## 1.29 DEMONSTRATION OF COMPETENCY

Bidders must be able to demonstrate a good record of performance for a reasonable period of time, and have sufficient financial support, equipment and organization to ensure they can satisfactorily execute the services if awarded a contract under the terms and conditions herein stated.

The terms "equipment" and "organization" as used herein shall be construed to mean a fully equipped and well established company in line with the best business practices in the industry and as determined by the FSA.

The FSA may consider any evidence available regarding the financial, technical and other qualifications and abilities of a Bidder, including past performance with the FSA in making the award.

The FSA may require Bidders to show proof that they have been designated as authorized representatives of a manufacturer or supplier which is the actual source of supply. In these instances, the FSA may also require information from the source of supply regarding the quality, packaging and characteristics of the products. Any conflicts between this material information provided by the source of supply and the information contained in the bid submission may render the bid nonresponsive.

Pre-award inspection of the Bidder's facility may be made prior to the award of contract. Bids will only be considered from firms which are regularly engaged in the business of providing the goods or services as described in this Bid.

Information submitted in the bid may not be plagiarized and, except in the case of materials quoted from this solicitation or developed by the manufacturer, must be the original work of the individual or company that submits the bid for evaluation.

## 1.30 VENDOR ABILITY TO PERFORM

During the contract period, FSA may review the vendor's record of performance to ensure that the vendor is providing sufficient financial support, equipment and organization.

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

If the FSA determines that the vendor no longer possesses the financial support, equipment and organization in order to comply with this section, FSA has the authority to immediately terminate the contract awarded.

By responding to this procurement the vendor warrants that, to the best of his or her knowledge, there is no pending or threatened action, proceeding, or investigation, or any other legal or financial condition, that would in any way prohibit, restrain, or diminish the vendor's ability to satisfy the obligations of the Contract. The vendor warrants that neither it nor any affiliate is currently on the convicted vendor list maintained pursuant to section 287.133 of the Florida Statues, or on any similar list maintained by any other state or the federal government. The vendor shall immediately notify the FSA and purchaser in writing if its ability to perform is compromised in any manner during the term of the contract.

## 1.31 FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Bidder affirms by the signature on the contract signature page that the bidder:

- Has fully read and understands the scope, nature, and quality of work to be performed or the services to be rendered under this bid, and has the adequate facilities and personnel to fulfill such requirements;
- Accepts the financial responsibility associated with this bid, and declares that he or she has the access
  to capital (in the form of liquidity or credit lines) in order to meet the financial demands of such award;
  and
- Has assessed the financial responsibility required to serve the contract as bid, including such details as
  the obligations to perform all specifications bid, zones bid, and quantities that could be ordered, as
  well as timing of payment from purchasers, which can be 45 days from receipt of invoice.

## 1.32 QUALITY AND SAFETY

All materials used for the manufacture or construction of any supplies, materials or equipment covered by this bid shall be new. The items bid must be new, the latest model, of the best quality, and highest grade workmanship that meet or exceed federal safety standards.

Products requiring certification should require certification of options in cases where non-certified options could result in the decertification of the original product or warranty. In all cases where options are not certified, the Vendor must disclose to the end user that the non-certified options are not required to be certified. All options must meet or exceed federal safety standards.

#### 1.33 NONCONFORMANCE

Items may be tested for compliance with specifications. Items delivered that do not conform to specifications may be rejected and returned at the vendor's expense. Items not meeting the specifications and items not delivered within a reasonable period of time after expected delivery date may be purchased outside of the FSA contract.

Any violation of these stipulations may also result in:

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

- Vendor's name being removed from the awarded vendor list.
- FSA and purchasers being advised not to do business with vendor.

## 1.34 GRATUITIES

Proposers shall not offer any gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value to any official, employee, or agent of the FSA, for the purpose of influencing consideration of this bid.

#### 1.35 TIE BIDS

FSA has the right to award multiple bidders the primary or alternate award in the event of a tie.

In the event the FSA desires to break tie bids, and both businesses have qualifying drug-free work programs, the award will be made using the following criteria:

- Bidder Within the State of Florida
- Vendors performance record with purchasers
- Coin Toss

## 1.36 RIGHT TO AUDIT

Vendor shall establish and maintain a reasonable accounting system that enables FSA to readily identify Vendor's sales.

FSA and its authorized representatives shall have the right to audit and to make copies of all related records pertaining to this contract, including all government sales and eligible users information whether kept by or under the control of the vendor, including, but not limited to those kept by its employees, agents, assigns, successors, sub-vendors, or third party suppliers in whatever form they may be kept – written or electronic. Such records shall include, but not be limited to:

- Accounting records, including paid vouchers, cancelled checks, deposit slips, ledgers, and bank statements;
- Written policies and procedures;
- Subcontract files (including proposals of successful and unsuccessful bidders, bid recaps, etc.);
- Original estimates or work sheets;
- Contract amendments and change order files;
- Insurance documents; or
- Memoranda or correspondence.

Vendor shall maintain such records during the term of this Contract and for a period of three (3) years after the completion of this Contract. At the vendor's expense and upon written notice from FSA, the vendor shall provide such records for inspection and audit by FSA or its authorized representatives. Such records shall be made available to FSA during normal business hours within three business days of receipt of the written notice. FSA may select the vendor's place of business or offsite location for the audit. The FSA may also request the vendor provide requested records via e-mail.

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

Vendor shall ensure FSA has these rights with Vendor's employees, agents, assigns, successors, and third party supplier and the obligations of these rights shall be explicitly included in any subcontracts or agreements formed between the Vendor and any Sub-Vendors to the extent that those subcontracts or agreements relate to fulfillment of the Vendor's obligations to FSA.

Professional fees, personnel costs and travel costs incurred by FSA under its authority to audit and not addressed elsewhere will be the responsibility of the FSA. However, if the audit identifies under reporting, overpricing or overcharges (of any nature) by the vendor to FSA or a customer in excess of three percent (3%) of the total contract billings, the vendor shall reimburse FSA for the total costs of the audit not to exceed \$5,000. If the audit discovers substantive findings related to fraud, misrepresentation, or non-performance, FSA may recoup all the costs of the audit work from the vendor.

Any adjustments or payments that must be made as a result of any such audit or inspection of the vendor's invoices or records shall be made within a reasonable amount of time (not to exceed 60 days) from presentation of FSA's findings to Vendor.

FSA has the right to assess damages or seek reimbursements or refunds based on audit results.

## 1.37 LIABILITY, INSURANCE, LICENSES AND PERMITS

Where vendors are required to enter or go onto FSA or purchaser property to deliver materials or perform work or services as a result of a bid award, the vendor will assume the full duty, obligation and expense of obtaining all necessary licenses, permits and insurance and assure all work complies with all applicable county and municipal code requirements. The vendor shall be liable for any damages or loss to the FSA or purchaser occasioned by negligence of the vendor or any person the vendor has designated in the completion of the contract as a result of the bid.

## 1.38 BID BONDS, PERFORMANCE BONDS, CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE

Bid Bonds, when required, shall be submitted with the bid in the amount specified in Bidder Instructions.

After acceptance of bid, the FSA will notify the successful bidder to submit the applicable certificates of insurance in the amounts specified in the Bidder Instructions and/or Insurance Checklist.

Purchaser may request a performance bond from a vendor. Performance Bonds are recommended with pre-payment and will be at the expense of the requesting agency. Purchasers should determine the best practice in comparing performance bond expense against any prior discounts that may be available.

## 1.39 ELIMINATION FROM CONSIDERATION

This Invitation to Bid shall not be awarded to any person or bidder who has outstanding debts to the FSA, whether in relation to current or previous bid awards or for other business purposes.

## 1.40 COLLUSION

Collusion is a non-competitive secret or sometimes illegal agreement between rival bidders that attempts to disrupt the contract process equilibrium. Collusion involves people or companies that would typically compete, but are conspiring or working together in which the outcome results in an unfair bid advantage.

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

The parties may collectively choose to agree to increase or decrease its product base price in one or more zones to maximize awards thus denying the public a fair price.

## Examples of Bid Collusion:

- Cover bidding: a competitor agrees to submit a non-competitive bid that is too high to be accepted
  or contains terms that are unacceptable to the buyer.
- Bid suppression or withdrawal: a competitor agrees not to bid or to withdraw a bid from consideration.
- Market sharing: a competitor agrees to submit bids only in certain geographic areas or only to certain public organizations.
- Bid rotation: competitors agree to take turns at winning business while monitoring their market shares to ensure they all have a predetermined market share.

Bidders or vendors who have been found to have engaged in collusion will be considered nonresponsive, and will be suspended or barred from bid participation. Any contract award resulting from collusive bidding may be terminated for default. Further, any collusion that is detected by the FSA may be reported to relevant law enforcement and/or prosecutorial agencies.

Bidders may submit multiple bids without conflict of collusion if the bid submitted is not from the same manufacturer and product line. Dealers which share the same ownership may submit multiple bids without conflict of collusion if the bidders are not in the same region featuring the same manufacturer and product line.

#### 1.41 DEFAULT

Failure or refusal of a bidder to execute a contract upon award or withdrawal of a bid before such award is made, may result in forfeiture of any bid surety required that is equal to damages incurred by the FSA there from, or where surety is not required, failure to execute a contract as described above may be grounds for removing the bidder from the awarded vendor's list.

In case of default on the part of awarded bidder, the FSA may take necessary steps to otherwise procure the products sought, including but not limited to procuring the products or services from the next highest ranked bidder or from other sources. A defaulting bidder may be held liable for costs incurred by the FSA in procuring replacement products.

#### 1.42 PROTESTS AND ARBITRATION

Options are for informational purposes only and will not serve as a basis for protest.

Any person who is adversely affected by the decision or intended decision to award shall file a "Notice of Protest" in writing to the FSA within three (3) business days after the posting of the Intent to Award and shall file a formal written protest within five (5) business days after filing the Notice of Protest. Failure to file both a notice of protest and a formal written protest within the above referenced timelines shall constitute a waiver of proceedings.

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

The burden is on the party protesting the award of the bid to establish grounds for invalidating the award(s). The formal written protest must state with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is based. Failure to do so will result in a denial of protest. Formal written protest which states with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is based will be reviewed by FSA legal counsel for legal soundness and validity, and corrective action will be taken as needed contingent upon the validity of such claims. However, any additional time required and cost incurred by the FSA to substantiate a protesting party's claim(s) beyond the normal scope of its legal review due to the vague or inconclusive nature of the protesting party's filing will be reimbursable to the FSA and deducted from the protesting party's bond or security which must accompany their filing.

Any bidder who files an action protesting a decision or intended decision pertaining to this contract shall post a bond, cashier's check or money order payable to the Florida Sheriffs Association in the amount equal to ten percent of the product line being protested. The bond, cashier's check or money order must be filed at the time of filing the formal written protest or within the five (5) business day period allowed for filing the formal written protest. FSA will provide the amount required within two (2) business days of the notice of protest received. This bond or security will be conditioned upon the payment of all costs which may be adjudged against the protesting party in a court of law and/or to reimburse the FSA for additional legal expenses incurred and required to substantiate the protesting party's claim(s). Failure to post the bond or security requirement within the time allowed for filing will result in a denial of protest. The filing of the protest shall not stay the implementation of the bid award by the Florida Sheriffs Association.

Should the unsuccessful bidder(s) decide to appeal the decision of the FSA, they shall file a notice to FSA within three (3) business days of the FSA bid protest decision regarding their intent to request arbitration. A demand for arbitration with the American Arbitration Association's (AAA) commercial panel under its rules and regulations must be made within ten (10) business days of the FSA bid protest decision. Any person who files for an arbitration with the AAA shall post with the Florida Sheriffs Association at the time of filing the formal written arbitration request, a bond, cashier's check or money order payable to the Florida Sheriffs Association in the amount equal to ten percent of the product line being protested. This amount will be the same amount as the FSA provided at the time of filing the initial protest. Failure to provide written notice to FSA, file a demand for arbitration with the AAA, or failure to post the required bond and security requirement within the specified timelines shall constitute a waiver of arbitration proceedings. By responding to this procurement the bidder expressly agrees to the use of mandatory binding arbitration to resolve any appeals of the decision of the FSA, and any claims arising from or in any way relating to the procurement process, and expressly waives any and all rights that it may otherwise have to pursue such claims in any other forum, judicial or otherwise.

If the party filing for arbitration does not prevail, it shall pay all costs, legal expenses and attorney fees of the prevailing party incurred in connection with the arbitration. However, if the filing party prevails, the parties shall share equally the fees and expenses of the arbitration and AAA and each shall bear the cost of their own attorney fees. The filing for arbitration shall not stay the implementation of the bid award by the Florida Sheriffs Association.

## 1.43 NONPERFORMANCE

By virtue of the bid submission, bidder acknowledges its obligation to sell vehicles and equipment in all zones for which it is awarded. Failure of the bidder to comply with these requirements may result in the imposition of liquidated damages of up to \$1,000 per vehicle/equipment, which amount the vendor agrees is reasonable, or probation, suspension, termination or a combination thereof from current and future bids at the FSA's discretion.

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

The vendor shall at all times during the contract term remain responsive and responsible. In determining vendor's responsibility, the FSA shall consider all information or evidence that demonstrates the vendor's ability or willingness to fully satisfy the requirements of the solicitation and the contract.

Vendors that are not in compliance with any of the provisions of this contract can be assessed liquidated damages, suspended or terminated from the contract. The FSA at it's sole discretion may remove a noncompliant vendor from future competitive bid solicitations; or take other actions including suspension from the contract until compliance issues are resolved, limit current or future vendor participation by specifications or zones, or other actions as determined by FSA at it's sole discretion.

At FSA's discretion, vendors may be required to develop corrective action plans to address contract compliance. Failure to abide by corrective action plans will result termination from the existing contract and future competitive bid solicitations at the discretion of the FSA.

In situations where there is evidence that the vendor has engaged in egregious breaches of the contract with respect to either the FSA and/or the purchaser, the contract can be terminated and the vendor will be removed from future solicitations for a period of up to three (3) years, or a permanent ban from the bid process at the sole discretion of FSA.

Specific conditions for termination include, but are not limited to; failure to perform, refusal to accept orders during the contract period while manufacturer orders are still being accepted for current model year or the new year if the vehicle is price protected by the factory, charging amounts exceeding MSRP on factory or vendor installed items and packages, requiring the purchase of additional options over and above the base vehicle as a condition of acceptance of order, providing aftermarket options where factory options are available without the consent of the purchaser, any misrepresentation of optional equipment or service as being factory that fails to meet the definition as described in this document, and any other practice deemed to be inconsistent with the intent of the contract.

Any vendor presented with a valid purchase order is required by this contract to accept such purchase order and deliver the product. Orders must be fulfilled if the vehicle or equipment is a base model or whether it includes options. The vendor must deliver this product if they were awarded the contract – regardless of profit or loss.

Failure to deliver the vehicles or equipment may result in the purchaser seeking damages for the difference of cost to issue the exact same order with another vendor plus any legal fees and damages that may be incurred in the process to facilitate a completed order. Additionally, FSA may seek damages for nonpayment of administrative fees, to which FSA is entitled, according to Section 3.28 and any attorney's fees incurred in the recovery of these damages.

All terms and conditions are applicable throughout the term of the contract and not any given Year, Make or Model.

## 1.44 SEVERABILITY

In the event any provision of this contract is held to be unenforceable for any reason, the unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remainder of the contract which shall remain in full force and effect and enforceable in accordance with its terms.

## **Cooperative Purchasing Program**

## Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/7/2019

## 1.45 TERMINATION FOR CAUSE

If through any cause within the reasonable control of the vendor, it shall fail to fulfill in a timely manner, or otherwise violate any of the terms of this contract, the FSA shall have the right to terminate the services remaining to be performed. Written notice of the deficiencies shall be given to the vendor and unless the deficiencies are corrected within 10 business days, the Contract may be terminated for cause immediately. The right to exercise the option to terminate for cause shall be in the sole discretion of the FSA, and the failure to exercise such right shall not be deemed to constitute a waiver of this right.

In that event, the FSA shall compensate the successful bidder in accordance with the contract for all services performed by the bidder prior to termination, net of any costs incurred by the FSA as a consequence of the default.

Notwithstanding the above, the vendor shall not be relieved of liability to the FSA for damages sustained by the FSA by virtue of any breach of the contract by the vendor, and the FSA may reasonably withhold payments to the vendor for the purposes of off set until such time as the exact amount of damages due the FSA from the vendor is determined.

## 1.46 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE

The FSA can terminate the contract in whole or part without cause by giving written notice to the vendor of such termination, which shall become effective 30 days following receipt by vendor of such notice.

In that event, all finished or unfinished documents and other materials shall be properly delivered to the FSA.

The vendor shall not furnish any product after it receives the notice of termination, except as necessary to complete the continued portion of the contract, if any. The vendor shall not be entitled to recover any lost profits that the vendor expected to earn on the balanced of the Contract or cancellation charges.

Any payments to the vendor shall be only to the total extent of the FSA liability for goods or services delivered prior to the date of notice to terminate the contract.

#### 1.47 CONTRACT ADVERTISMENT AND USE OF FSA LOGO

The CPP logo is an official logo of the Florida Sheriffs Association designed to promote the program. The logo may be used by vendors in accordance with this policy. Use of the logo is limited to the original version received from the FSA. Modifications are not permitted.

Methods of use include, but are not limited to:

- · Electronic mediums such as websites, digital marketing campaigns, social media and e-mail; or
- Print media such as forms, marketing campaigns, business cards, posters, banners, brochures, flyers and postcards.

Vendors may request the logo by contacting <a href="mailto:cpp@flsheriffs.org">cpp@flsheriffs.org</a>, and should include a brief description of the how the vendor intends to use the logo.

The official FSA sheriff's star and wreath logo may not be used without prior written permission.